
 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Hoc Committee Agenda (November 7, 2018) Page 1 of 1 

    

 

 

 

  

 TRANSIENT LODGING TAX AD HOC COMMITTEE AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 7, 2018, 4:00 PM 

NEWBERG CITY HALL, 414 E FIRST STREET 

 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 5, 2018 

 

IV. MINUTES OF THE MARKETING SUBCOMMITTEE – AUGUST 20 AND SEPTEMBER 17, 

2018  

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

VI. TOURISM MARKETING ORGANIZATION 

 

VII. WAKE UP IN WINE COUNTRY PROGRAM  

 

VIII. STATUS OF DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT-MARKETING GRANTS FY 17/18 

(PROGRESS REPORT NEWBERG DOWNTOWN WINERIES ASSOCIATION, CHEHALEM 

CULTURAL CENTER, AND WOLVES & PEOPLE) 

 

IX. STATUS OF SMALL GRANTS FY 17/18 (FINAL REPORT HOOVER-MINTHORN HOUSE 

MUSEUM MARKETING PLAN AND EXHIBIT)  

 

X. TLT MEMBER UPDATES 

 

XI. NEXT MEETING - DECEMBER 5, 2018 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the Office Assistant 

II of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 48 business hours 

prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the Office Assistant II at (503) 544-7788. For TTY services please dial 711. 

Page 1 of 76 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting September 5, 2018  Page 1 of 4 

 

TRANSIENT LODGING TAX AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

September 5, 2018,  4:00 PM 

Permit Center Conference Room, Newberg City Hall 

414 E First Street 

 

 

Chair Lewis called the meeting to order at 4:10 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Dennis Lewis, Chair  Jessica Bagley  

 Megan Carda   Rob Felton 

 Robert Griffin   Brian Love 

  Shannon Buckmaster   Mayor Andrews, Ex Officio 

 Joe Hannan, Ex Officio 

 

Members Absent: Sheila Nicholas, Vice Chair   Ashley Lippard (excused) 

 Kyle M. Lattimer (excused)  Lori Louis (excused) 

 Loni Parrish (excused)   

    

Staff Present:  Cheryl Caines, Senior Planner 

 

Guests Present: Mike Ragsdale, Ted Crawford 

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

MOTION:  Rob Felton/Shannon Buckmaster moved to approve minutes as amended August 1, 2018 Motion 

carried (7 Yes/ 0 No). 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 

None. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Chair discussed changing the date of the October meeting. October 4 and 5 work for him. 

 

Consensus to move the October meeting to the 4th. 

 

MARKETING PROPOSAL 

 

Chair Lewis indicated that City Council indicated to go on the marketing proposal. The proposal was developed 

in less than two years. City staff will hammer out the details. 

 

Member Felton asked for update on the Tourism Organization formation activities. 

 

Ex Officio Hannan indicated nothing else has happened. 

 

Page 2 of 76 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting September 5, 2018  Page 2 of 4 

Chair Lewis clarified that the status is discussions between the City Attorney and CDD Rux. The packet has 

information on process and timeline. 

 

Ted Crawford inquired what would be Dundee’s involvement in a tourism organization. Could Dundee 

contribute dollars to the salary of the new Executive Director? Yamhill County Tourism partnership is working 

on an organizational structure. The County does not have a funding source though and are copying the Visit 

McMinnville model. 

 

Member Carda shared that Ted Crawford is working on bylaws for Yamhill County approach. 

 

Ted Crawford noted there was a general discussion on a county-wide organization.  

 

Chair Lewis indicated he would prefer to be more inclusive rather than less inclusive. 

 

Member Love asked how to protect outside sources of funding at City Council occurred related to TLT funds. 

 

Ted Crawford noted that Newberg has to apply some of its TLT revenue to 70/30 split and that Dundee is split 

70/30. 

 

Chair Lewis noted Newberg is 65/35 split based on the length of time the program has been in place. He 

thanked people for their time and effort. 

 

WAKE UP IN WINE COUNTRY 

 

Ex Officio Andrews noted City Council approved the Wake Up in Wine Country proposal. 

 

Member Buckmaster Chamber submitted the grant to Travel Oregon. Gathering information was challenging. 

The TLT Committee was impressed that Newberg and Dundee worked together rather than competing. Travel 

Oregon complimented the effort.  

 

Member Felton noted we may need to go back to Council to ask for addition marketing dollars for the program. 

He indicated he was not aggressive enough in his ask to City Council and should have asked for more funds. 

 

Member Buckmaster indicated a delay on an additional request would be ok. She shared that Jeff Knapp 

submitted a letter of support for the grant application to Travel Oregon and Newberg’s efforts to establish a 

Destination Marketing Organization. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Mike Ragsdale noted he has a grant request for $5,000 to refurbish wine barrels. 

 

Member Buckmaster raised the Bypass signage issue that that would identify Downtown Newberg.  

 

Mike Ragsdale indicated he is working with ODOT signage people. 

 

Member Buckmaster mentioned blue signs rather than standard green sign that would direct people to 

downtown. 

 

Page 3 of 76 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting September 5, 2018  Page 3 of 4 

Mike Ragsdale shared he received different information from what Member Buckmaster had shared. 

 

Member Felton noted blue signs have a cost to install. 

 

Chair Lewis inquired if there was another marketing committee meeting scheduled. 

 

Member Felton noted one is scheduled for Sept 17. 

 

Member Griffin if what they have is the last draft for Visit Newberg. 

 

Chair Lewis indicated no and that CDD Rux and the City Attorney will be working on documents. 

 

Member Carda inquired if the group need to continue meeting. 

 

Chair Lewis shared that the Committee will meet to review what CDD Rux and the City Attorney come up 

with. 

 

Member Carda asked about the turnaround time and do we meet needlessly, or do we cancel meetings until 

needed. 

 

Chair Lewis noted he will talk with CDD Rux when he returns. 

 

Member Carda asked if the Committee can meet to discuss other opportunities like Wake Up in Wine Country. 

 

Member Love inquired if there might be some discussions on advertising expenses. 

 

Member Felton noted the timing to get items to City Council is a month or two out. 

 

Member Love asked if there is anything we can do on a small scale for tourism promotion. 

 

Member Bagley asked if revisiting restaurant week is a possibility. 

 

Member Buckmaster noted Wake Up in Wine Country is a continuation of Rain or Shine but she did not think 

have the staff to roll out a big program as the Chamber does not have the resources. 

 

Member Carda asked if we will be working with Dundee as they have a social media person. If we stop doing 

promotion activities now it will be another year out before we do anything. 

 

Member Felton indicated the Rain or Shine program was underwhelming last year. Wake Up in Wine Country 

would be year round promotional program with summer videos and winter videos (off season). 

 

Member Carda asked Member Bagley if there was value in the restaurant program. 

 

Member Bagley noted is would be better if people are coming for another event. 

 

Member Felton noted that no matter what we do an updated Newberg/Dundee website is necessary. 

 

Member Carda as if information could be pulled off the Chamber website. 

Page 4 of 76 



 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Newberg: TLT Ad Committee Meeting September 5, 2018  Page 4 of 4 

 

Member Felton indicated Dundee has a web site, so do we need a Newberg website and could they be 

combined. 

 

Member Griffin indicated that we need to have something to promote restaurants in Newberg. 

 

Member Buckmaster suggested to not make any big changes before a new Executive Director arrives. 

 

Chair Lewis suggested small changes to integrate the two web sites or other small activities. 

 

Mike Ragsdale shared the focus should be on policy and direction, not the details, what do you want it to be? 

There was a general discussion about web sites. 

 

There was a general discussion amongst the Members about a new Executive Director and their duties. 

References were made to Arizona as examples. General discussion on Executive Director skill set. There was a 

discussion about the draft Marketing Plan about gambling and slot machines. Comments were made about 

basing attributes off of the Downtown Plan. Committee Members asked when they would get the opportunity to 

review documents again. Questions were raised if the City of Newberg would have a contract with the 

Executive Director. It was indicated no the Executive Director would be an employee of the Tourism Marketing 

Organization. If there are comments by people on documents they should be directed to CDD Rux. 

 

NEXT MEETING 

 

October 4, 2018 4:00 pm 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

MOTION:  Dennis Lewis/Shannon Buckmaster moved to adjourn the meeting Motion carried (7 Yes/ 0 No). 

 

Meeting adjourned at 5:03 pm 

 

Approved by the Newberg Transient Lodging Tax Ad-Hoc Committee this November 7, 2018. 

 

 

_____________________________________  _____________________________________ 

Dennis Lewis, TLT Ad-Hoc Committee Chair             Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 76 



Page 6 of 76 



Page 7 of 76 



Page 8 of 76 



Page 9 of 76 



Page 10 of 76 



Page 11 of 76 



1 
 

   Community Development Department 
      P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132  

      503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Transient Lodging Tax Ad Hoc Committee 

FROM: Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Tourism Marketing Organization  

DATE:  November 7, 2018 

 

 

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-3436 on August 20, 2018 (Attachment 1) indicating their 

intent to establish a tourism marketing organization. Staff has prepared an initial draft of a Request for 

Council Action and supporting draft Agreement between the City of Newberg and an organization that is 

generically called Visit Newberg (Attachment 2). Staff has additional prepared a draft Request for 

Council Action on the initial appointment of Board members for Visit Newberg (Attachment 3). As 

background information staff has included Exhibits A - E to Attachment 1. 

 

At the October 23, 2018 TLT Marketing Subcommittee meeting it was discussed if the Tourism 

Organization (Visit Newberg) should be a combined Newberg and Dundee group. This topic will need to 

be discussed as the current draft agreement is Newberg focused based on the direction City Council 

provided on August 20, 2018. 

 

Other topics to consider in reviewing the draft Agreement include: 

 

1. Does Visit Newberg need to be an established non-profit before an Agreement is entered into? 

2. Who creates the initial Bylaws for the organization? A copy of the Visit McMinnville Bylaws are 

included as an example of a template to use for Visit Newberg’s Bylaws (Attachment 4).  

3. Does the approach on the first year make sense? It is intended to cover an interim period of 

January 2019 – June 2019. 

4. Is the Annual Business and Marketing Plan approach and reporting consistent with the past 

discussions of the TLT Committee? 

5. Should there be language that the Tourism Organization Board meetings are open to the public? 

6. Should the Tourism Organization have to follow Oregon Public Records Law? 

7. Other questions or concerns on the draft Agreement.  

 

For the initial Board appointments staff reviewed past minutes to glean what types of organizations 

should be represented on the Board. That list includes: 

 

1. Hotels/hospitality/lodging; one hotel, one Bed & Breakfast and one vacation rental; one-half of 

Board members need to be a payer of TLT tax; one lodging provider from Dundee and Newberg 

each 

Page 12 of 76 



2 
 

2. Real estate broker 

3. Citizen at large 

4. Person with marketing background or experience 

5. Local merchant 

6. Chehalem Cultural Center 

7. Chehalem Park & Recreation District 

8. Art and culture 

9. Restaurant 

10. history representation 

11. George Fox University 

12. Wineries 

 

Staff would suggest further discussing the make-up of the Board and the number of Board seats. Ex 

Officio membership should also be discussed. 

 

Terms for the Newberg TLT Committee expire at the end of the year. Staff suggests the Committee 

discuss the opportunity to continue on for an additional 90-days.  

  

 

Attachments: 1. Resolution No. 2018-3436 

  2. Draft Request for Council Action and supporting draft Agreement  

3. Draft Request for Council Action on the initial appointment of Board members for Visit 

Newberg 

4. Visit McMinnville Bylaws 

    

 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 76 



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 14 of 76 



Page 15 of 76 



Page 16 of 76 



Page 17 of 76 



Page 18 of 76 



Page 19 of 76 



Page 20 of 76 



Page 21 of 76 



Page 22 of 76 



Page 23 of 76 



Page 24 of 76 



Page 25 of 76 



Page 26 of 76 



Page 27 of 76 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: Month, Date, Year 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No.  

SUBJECT:   
Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Doug Rux, Director 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES FROM SEPTEMBER 2017):   

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 28 of 76 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 201x-xxxx 

 

 

A RESOLUTION   
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The City of Newberg established a Transient Lodging Tax on _______ (Ordinance No. ____). 

 

2. Ordinance No. _____ 

 

3. The Transient Lodging Tax Ad Hoc Committee was established on ______ 

 

4. After extensive strategic planning the Transient Lodging Tax Ad Hoc Committee recommended 

to the City Council that the future use of tourism related funds should be the establishment of a 

destination marketing organization (DMO). 

 

5. The DMO will become a viable non-profit organization as of ______ and will be known as Visit 

Newberg. 

 

6. The City desires to contract with Visit Newberg to provide both tourism promotion activities and 

administrative and management functions. 

7.  

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. Entry into the attached contract with Visit Newberg is in the best interest of the City. 

 

2. The City Manager is authorized to sign the contract. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: ________, 201x. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this         day of               , 201x. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this                day of              , 201x. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 29 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF NEWBERG, OREGON 
AND 

VISIT NEWBERG 
 

FOR TOURISM PROMOTION SERVICES 
 
This Agreement is between the City of Newberg, an Oregon municipal corporation, 
(City) and Visit Newberg, Inc. (Contractor), an Oregon nonprofit corporation. The City 
wishes to enter into this Agreement with the Contractor for tourism promotion services 
for the City. The Contractor is willing to provide the tourism promotion services the City 
desires. The City will compensate the Contractor with a portion of the Transient Lodging 
Taxes the City assesses pursuant to Oregon State law and Ordinance No. ____. 
 

1. Definitions: 
 

a. “tourism promotion” means any of the following activities: 

i)  advertising, publicizing, or distributing information for the purpose of 
attracting and welcoming tourists, 

ii)  conducting strategic planning and research necessary to stimulate 
future tourism development, 

iii)  operating tourism promotion agencies, and 
iv)  marketing special events and festivals designed to attract tourists (ORS 

320.300(7)). 
 

b. “tourism” means economic activity resulting from tourists (ORS 20.300(6)). 

c. “tourist” means a person who, for business, pleasure, recreation, or 
participation in events related to the arts, heritage, or culture, travels from 
the community in which that person is a resident to a different community 
that is separate, distinct from, and unrelated to the person’s community of 
residence, and that trip: 

 
i)  requires the person to travel more than 50 miles from the community 

of residence, or 
ii) includes an overnight stay (ORS 320.300(10)). 

d. “tourism promotion agency” includes: 
 

i)  an incorporated non-profit organization or governmental unit that is 
responsible for the tourism promotion of a destination on a year-round 
basis, 

ii) a non-profit entity that manages tourism-related economic 
development plans, programs, and projects, and 

Page 30 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

2 
 

iii) a regional or statewide association that represents entities that rely on 
tourism-related business for more than 50 percent of their total 
income (ORS 320.300(8)). 

 
2. Contractor’s Services: 

 
In exchange for the payment provided in Section 6, the Contractor will provide 
the following tourism promotion services to the City:  
 
a. Tourism promotion activities: The Contractor will provide functions, activities, 

programs, literature (develop, arrange for printing, and distribute), advertising, 
staff, supplies, equipment, and support to promote Newberg as a destination 
for tourists and visitors. The Contractor will coordinate its activities, as 
appropriate, with other organizations such as the Chehalem Valley Chamber 
of Commerce and the Newberg Downtown Coalition and other visitor 
promotion entities. 

 
b. Administrative and management functions: The Contractor will provide day to-

day management activities including planning and acquisition of services, 
equipment, supplies, and facilities to fulfill the Annual Business and Marketing 
Plan (the Business Plan) for Visit Newberg. The Contractor will be responsible 
for maintaining capable and competent staff, including management staff. The 
Contractor’s Executive Director or designee will attend any City Council 
meetings as requested by the City Council to provide updates, information, or 
other data on Visit Newberg plans and services. 

 
3. First Year of the Agreement: 

 
a. Once the Agreement is fully executed and before it is funded, the City may 

make payments on behalf of Visit Newberg for various charges (e.g. insurance 
premiums, advertising costs for the Executive Director). These payments will 
be deducted from the funding the City will provide Visit Newberg when the 
certificates of insurance are approved by the City. 

 
b. Once the Agreement is fully executed and acceptable certificates of insurance 

have been provided to the City, the City will provide Visit Newberg with funding 
in the amount of ____% of the Transient Lodging Taxes accrued and 
unexpended since the inception of the Transient Lodging Tax, minus the City’s 
monthly administrative charges. 

 
c. No later than ________, 2019: 

 
i)  The Contractor will establish an initial high-level budget to enable the 

Contractor’s Board to make informed decisions regarding staff, 
contract vendors, leases, and other issues and 

 

Page 31 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

3 
 

ii) The Contractor will adopt financial policies and procedures. 
 

d. No later than _______, 2019, the Contractor will hire an Executive Director. 
 

e. No later than ______, 2019, the Contractor will prepare and submit a Business 
and Marketing Plan (the Business Plan) to the City Council. The Business Plan 
will contain a detailed description of the services the Contractor proposes to 
provide during the remainder of the fiscal year, as well as a proposed budget 
for the remainder of the fiscal year.  

 
The Plan will identify activities and performance goals. The Contractor will be 
fully responsible for the implementation of services and programs and the City 
will not control the day-to-day activities and operations of Visit Newberg and its 
employees and agents. However, the City may provide general suggestions 
regarding the funding of various services or programs, which the Contractor 
will consider in the use of City funds.  

 
The Contractor’s proposed 2018-2019 budget will be prepared assuming a 
total budget for services provided under this Agreement of the amount of 
accrued and unexpended Transient Lodging Tax collections from previous 
years paid to Visit Newberg under the provisions of 3.b. above, plus _____% 
of projected Transient Lodging Tax collections for the current year, minus the 
City’s monthly administrative charges for the current year. The budget will 
contain a reserve fund in an amount equal to at least three months of total 
operating expenses. 

 
f. The City Council will consider the Business Plan during a Council meeting in 

the month of ______, after which, the Council will determine whether to 
approve the Plan. If the Council approves the Business Plan, the Council will 
authorize continued funding for the remainder of the fiscal year. The 
Contractor will expend funds received from the City under this Agreement only 
as set out in and authorized by the Business Plan. If the Council does not 
approve the Business Plan and the parties cannot reach agreement on 
modification, this Agreement will terminate in the same manner as if the 
Contractor had defaulted or breached the Agreement, pursuant to Article 13. 

 
g. No later than _____, 2019, the Contractor will prepare and submit to the City 

Council a written progress report on the Business Plan, including the budget. 
The City Council may request that a representative of the Contractor attend a 
City Council meeting to provide further information and to answer any 
questions. 

 
4. Annual Business and Marketing Plan: 

 
a. Beginning with the 2019-2020 fiscal year, the Contractor will prepare and 

submit a Business Plan to the City Council no later than three weeks before 

Page 32 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

4 
 

the first Council meeting of May each year. The Business Plan will contain a 
review of the previous year’s performance and a detailed description of the 
services the Contractor proposes to provide in the next fiscal year, as well as a 
proposed budget for the next fiscal year. The Business Plan will identify 
activities and performance goals. Additionally, the Business Plan will contain a 
detailed explanation of any amendments the Contractor has made to the 
Contractor’s bylaws. The Contractor will be fully responsible for the 
implementation of services and programs and the City will not control the day 
to-day activities and operations of Visit Newberg and its employees and 
agents. However, the City may provide general suggestions regarding the 
funding of various services or programs, which the Contractor will consider in 
the use of City funds. 

 
b. The City Council will consider the Business Plan during a Council meeting in 

the month of May each year, after which, the Council will determine whether to 
approve the Plan. If the Council approves the Business Plan, the Council will 
authorize continued funding of Visit Newberg for the next fiscal year. The 
Contractor will expend funds received from the City under this Agreement only 
as set out in and authorized by the Business Plan. If the Council does not 
approve the Business Plan and the parties cannot reach agreement on 
modifications, this Agreement will terminate in the same manner as if the 
Contractor had defaulted or breached the Agreement, pursuant to Article 13. 

 
c. The Contractor’s proposed budget will be prepared assuming a total budget for 

services provided under this Agreement of _____% of projected Transient 
Lodging Tax collections for the current year, minus the City’s monthly 
administrative charges for the current year. 

 
The Contractor’s annual budget will contain a reserve fund in an amount equal 
to at least three months of total operating expenses as defined by the 
Contractor’s adopted fiscal policies. The reserve fund may be used in the case 
of actual revenues being less than forecast and in support of activities included 
in the approved Business Plan. In no case will expenditures exceed actual 
funds payable under this Agreement. However, nothing in this section 
precludes the Contractor using funds secured from sources other than the City 
in the Contractors’ complete and total discretion. 

 
5. Other Reports: 

 
a. The Contractor will prepare and submit to the City Council three written 

progress reports each year (in August, November, and February) on the 
Business Plan, including the budget. These reports will also contain notice of 
any amendments the Contractor has made to the Contractor’s bylaws. The 
City Council may request that a representative of the Contractor attend a City 
Council meeting to provide further information and to answer any questions. 

 

Page 33 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

5 
 

b. If the City’s actual collection of Transient Lodging Tax revenues exceeds the 
amount approved in the Contractor’s budget by 20% or more, before the City 
will provide additional funds to the Contractor, the Contractor will submit a 
revised Business Plan to the City, describing how the additional funds will be 
spent on tourism promotion activities. 

 
6. Funding: 

 
The City agrees to compensate the Contractor from Transient Lodging Tax 
revenues collected by the City. The compensation will be for services provided 
under this Agreement. The amount paid quarterly (in August, November, 
February, and May) to the Contractor will be based on _____% of the Transient 
Lodging Tax collected by the City in the preceding quarter. This amount is 
subject to the following: 

 
a. The provisions of Section 5.b above, and 

 
b. Administrative charges by the City. 

 
7. Administrative Costs: The Contractor’s administrative and management costs, 

including but not limited to personnel, rent, financial management services, 
internal budgeting and accounting, purchasing, insurance, maintenance, 
supervision, legal services, printing, and any other costs will be at the cost and 
discretion of the Contractor. 

 
8. Assets: The Contractor is an independent entity and will be responsible for 

acquiring and maintaining real and personal property related to the provision of 
services under this Agreement. The Contractor will own all real and personal 
property acquired by it. On termination of this Agreement, the Contractor will 
transfer any intellectual property or promotional materials associated with the 
provision of services under this Agreement to the City at no cost. 

 
9. Risk of Loss and Insurance: The Contractor bears the risk of loss of all its 

property (as described in Section 8). The Contractor, at its own expense, will 
procure and maintain general liability insurance to protect the Contractor from 
claims that may arise out of or result from the services provided under this 
Agreement. Prior to funding of this Agreement, the Contractor will provide 
proof that it has acquired this insurance. The insurance will be in an amount 
per occurrence at least equal to the City’s tort claims liability limits under the 
Oregon Tort Claims Act with a $3,000,000 aggregate. The policy will name the 
City, its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds. 

 
The Contractor and any of its subcontractors will maintain in full force and 
effect Worker’s Compensation insurance and Employer Liability insurance in 
compliance with Oregon State law. 

 

Page 34 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

6 
 

The Contractor will be responsible for all deductibles, self-insurance 
retentions, and self-insurance for the insurance required under this section. 
The Contractor will notify the City thirty days prior to any material change in 
the Contractor’s insurance, or, if that is not possible, immediately upon the 
Contractor receiving notice of a change. 

 
10. Annual Review/Audit: The financial books of Visit Newberg will be audited or 

reviewed annually by an independent certified public accountant. The 
accountant will make a written report of the review/audit to the Board of 
Directors which will then submit a copy of the report to the McMinnville City 
Council. The audit or review will be completed as soon as practical after the 
close of the fiscal year. 

 
11. Records and Accounting: The Contractor will maintain records and accounts 

that will allow the City to assure that all funds paid for the performance of this 
Agreement are properly accounted for. Within 72 hours of a written request 
by the City, the Contractor will make records relating to income and 
expenditures available for review and audit by the City. The City will have the 
right during the term of this Agreement, or within 180 days after the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, to audit the Contractor’s records 
for the period of three years prior to the audit. The audit may be undertaken 
by a qualified person or entity selected by the City. The Contractor agrees 
that it will provide financial records from its accountants to the City every 
month. These records will include, at minimum, a balance sheet and income 
and expense reports. The Contractor will maintain these financial records for 
at least six years after the expiration of this Agreement. 

 
12. Term: This Agreement will be in effect _____, 2019. It will remain in effect for 

three years unless terminated earlier under the provisions of Section 3.f 
(Council fails to approve the Business Plan), Section 4.b (Council fails to 
approve the Business Plan), Section 13 (default or material breach) or 
Section 21 (assignment without approval). At the end of the three year term, 
the Agreement will automatically renew for three one year periods unless 
either party wishes at any time not to extend the Agreement. If a party 
wishes not to extend the Agreement, that party will notify the other party that 
the Agreement will terminate at the end of the current Agreement period. 
Notification will be in writing and will be delivered no later than January 1 of 
the year in which the notifying party wishes the Agreement to terminate. 

 
13. Default and Breach: Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event 

of a default or material breach by the other party. The notifying party must 
provide written notice to the other party specifying how the other party is not 
in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The non-complying party will 
have thirty days after receipt of a notice of non-compliance to cure the 
issue(s). Should the correction(s) not be made during this thirty day period, 
this Agreement may be terminated, at the discretion of the notifying party, 

Page 35 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

7 
 

unless the correction(s) cannot be made within thirty days. If the non-
compliance cannot be corrected within thirty days, the non-complying party 
must, at minimum, begin corrective action within thirty days and proceed with 
due diligence until the correction is completed. This Agreement may be 
terminated, at the discretion of the notifying party, if the non-complying party 
either fails to begin to take corrective action within thirty days or fails or 
ceases to use due diligence to continue with the corrective action. 

 
14. Equal Opportunity: The Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against 

any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, age, color, 
sex, religion, ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
genetic information, or disability and will take any affirmative action 
necessary to ensure that all employees and applicants are treated equally. 
The Contractor and its employees will not, in the performance of this 
Agreement, discriminate against any customer, potential customer, patron, 
or other person on the bases listed above in this section and will provide 
services to all persons equally.  

 
15. Contractor Indemnification: The Contractor will defend, protect, indemnify, 

and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees from and 
against any and all claims, losses, damages, injuries, or liability including 
claims for misapplication of contributions or other funds, state or federal anti-
trust violations, personal injury or death, damage to property, liability arising 
out of the use of materials, concepts, or processes protected by intellectual 
property rights, and the liens of workmen and material men, regardless how 
these were caused, if they arose directly or indirectly from the performance 
of this Agreement by the Contractor, unless caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the City. The Contractor is not an officer, employee, or 
agent of the City under ORS 30.285 or 30.287. 

 
16. Licenses and Taxes: The Contractor will be responsible for the acquisition 

and maintenance of all licenses and permits to carry on the Contractor’s 
business. 

 
17. Independent Contractor: The Contractor is an independent contractor. The 

parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by 
this Agreement. The City is interested only in the results to be achieved. 
Conduct and control of the work will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 
The Contractor will not be considered an agent or employee of the City for 
any purpose, and the employees of the Contractor are neither employees of 
the City nor are they entitled to any of the benefits that the City provides for 
its employees. 

 
18. No Third Party Beneficiaries: The City and the Contractor are the only parties 

to this Agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. 
Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or will be construed to 

Page 36 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

8 
 

give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly, or otherwise, 
to third persons unless the third persons are identified by name in this 
Agreement and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of 
this Agreement. 

 
19. Authority: As specified in Section 17, the Contractor is an independent 

contractor in the performance of this Agreement. The Contractor will comply 
with all laws regarding unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and 
worker’s compensation. The Contractor will have no authorization, express 
or implied, to bind the City to any agreement, settlement, liability, or 
understanding, and agrees not to perform any acts as an agent of the City. 

 
20. Notice: Any notice or notices provided for in this Agreement or by law which 

must be given or served on either party will be given or served by personal 
service, certified mail (return receipt requested, postage prepaid), or by e-
mail or facsimile followed by certified mailing of the original, in a pre-
addressed, stamped envelope, addressed to: 

 
City of Newberg      Visit Newberg 
Joe Hannan      ________________ 
City Manager       Executive Director 
PO Box 970 
Newberg, OR 97132 

 
21. Assignment: Neither party may assign, subcontract, or otherwise transfer any 

rights and responsibilities under this Agreement except upon the written 
consent of the other party. If any assignment is made, both the assigning 
party and the assignee will be bound by the terms of this Agreement. The 
City may terminate the Agreement if transferred or assigned without the prior 
written consent of the City. 

 
22. Amendments: This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement 

signed by both parties. 
 

23. Laws of Oregon: This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of 
Oregon, both as to the interpretation and performance, and the venue will be 
Yamhill County. 

 
24. Waiver: The City’s failure to enforce a provision of this Agreement will not 

constitute a continuing waiver, will not constitute a relinquishment of the 
City’s right to performance in the future, and will not operate as a waiver of 
the City’s right to enforce any other provision of this Agreement. 

 
25. Merger: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties. 
 

Page 37 of 76 



  Draft 10/31/18 

9 
 

There are no understandings, agreements, or representations regarding this 
Agreement, whether oral or written, that are not specified in this Agreement. 

 
This contract is entered into by the City of Newberg and the initial Board of 
Directors of Visit Newberg, Inc., effective ______, 2019. 

 
CITY OF NEWBERG    VISIT NEWBERG, INC. 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Joe Hannan, City Manager     XXXXX, Chair 

______________________________ 
XXX, Vice Chair 

______________________________ 
XXX, Treasurer-Secretary 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 

______________________________ 
XXXX, Director 
 

 XXXX, Director 
______________________________ 

XXXX, Director (City Councilor) 
______________________________ 

XXXXX, Director (City staff) 

Page 38 of 76 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: Month, Date, Year 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  __   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No.  

SUBJECT: A Resolution appointing members to the 

initial Board of Directors of Visit Newberg 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Doug Rux, Director 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.:  

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES FROM SEPTEMBER 2017):   

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3

Page 39 of 76 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 201x-xxxx 

 

 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE INITIAL BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF VISIT NEWBERG 
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The City of Newberg adopted a Transient Lodging Tax on ___________. Pursuant to State law 

_____ % of revenue from the tax must be dedicated to tourism promotion or tourism related 

facilities. 

 

2. The City is in the process of establishing a Destination Marketing Organization, which will be 

charged with creating an effective mix of marketing, sales, and service programs designed to produce 

positive economic impact on visitor spending in Newberg. This non-profit organization will be 

known as Visit Newberg. Visit Newberg will be incorporated effective _______, 2019. The City will 

contract with Visit Newberg for tourism promotion services. 

 

3. In order to create the initial Board of Directors, the City Council will, by this Resolution, appoint the 

voting members of the initial Board and approve the Mayor’s appointment of the City Council 

member of the Board. 

 

4.  

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The City Council appoints the following volunteers to the initial Board of Directors of Visit 

Newberg: 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

h. 

i. 

j.     (member at large) 

k.     (member at large) 

 

2. The Mayor appoints and the City Council approves the appointment of Councilor _______ to be the 

City Council Board member. 

 

3. As the bylaws for Visit Newberg will require that the Director’s terms be staggered (approximately 

Page 40 of 76 



 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 201X-XXXX PAGE 2 

one third of the initial voting members of the Board of Directors will serve three year terms, 

approximately one third will serve two year terms, and approximately one third will serve one year 

terms) the City Council charges the Directors, at the first meeting of the Board in ______, 2019, to 

establish the term for each Director. 

 

4. This Resolution and these appointments will take effect _______, 2019 and shall continue in full 

force and effect until revoked or replaced. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: ________, 201x. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this         day of               , 201x. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this                day of              , 201x. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 41 of 76 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BYLAWS  

VISIT McMINNVILLE 

 

 
Article 1. Name 

 
Section 1.  Name.  This organization is incorporated under the state laws of Oregon as 

a 501(c)(6) non-membership organization and is known as Visit McMinnville (hereinafter 

VM). 

 
Article II. Purpose 

 
Section 1. Purpose and Role. VM is an economic and tourism development 

organization with a primary function of creating an effective mix of marketing, sales, and 

service programs designed to produce a positive economic impact on visitor spending in 

McMinnville.  Developing and implementing these programs results in an enhancement 

of the City's livability and economic viability by, among other things, providing increased 

employment and economic opportunity. VM promotes the entire City and works in 

partnership with all sectors of the visitor industry. VM practices the highest principles of 

civic citizenship and follows good business practices and policies. 

 
Article Ill. Contract 

 
Section 1. Contract. The City of McMinnville (City) contemplates entering into a sole 

source procurement contract with VM based on VM's status as the sole non-profit 

provider of the programs enumerated above through the use of the City's transient 

lodging tax income. The initial contract term is three years; however, VM will provide an 

annual review of the past year as well as an annual business plan for the upcoming 

year, and the contract may be terminated early if the City does not approve the review 

or business plan. The initial three year term of the contract will automatically renew for 

three one year periods unless either party wishes at any time not to extend the contract. 

If a party wishes not to extend the contract, that party will notify the other party that the 

contract will terminate at the end of the current contract period. Notification will be in 

writing and will be delivered no later than January 1 of the year in which the notifying 

party wishes the contract to terminate. Should VM's sole source status cease, the City 

will award subsequent contracts on the basis of the requirements of the public 

contracting law for non-sole source contracts. 

ATTACHMENT 4

Page 42 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 

 

Article IV.  Board of Directors 

 
Section 1.  General Powers and Responsibilities. The governance of VM is vested in a 

Board of Directors as further provided in these bylaws. The Board of Directors (also 

referred to as the Board) sets policy, establishes strategic direction, and fulfills legal and 

fiduciary responsibilities to VM.  Members of the Board of Directors (also referred to as 

Directors, Board members, and members) serve without compensation but they may be 

reimbursed for expenses related to Board services. Voting members of the initial Board of 

Directors have been appointed by the McMinnville City Council by a majority vote. 

 
Section 2. Number and Terms of Directors. The Board of Directors consists of no 

fewer than seven and no more than nine voting members, including the Chair, Vice 

Chair, Treasurer-Secretary, and two members at large. The Board also includes three 

non-voting members: the Executive Director, one City Councilor, and one City staff 

member. 

 
In order to stagger the terms of the Directors, approximately one third of the initial voting 

members of the Board of Directors will serve three year terms (a full term), 

approximately one third will serve two year terms, and approximately one third will serve 

one year terms. Subsequently, voting members of the Board will be elected to serve 

three year terms. Voting Board members will serve no more than three consecutive full 

terms. Voting Board members who have served three full terms may be reappointed to 

the Board after a hiatus of one year. 

 
If the City Councilor position is to be filled, it will be filled by appointment by the Mayor 

upon approval of a majority of the City Council. If the City staff member position is to be 

filled, it will be filled by appointment by the City Manager. Both the City Councilor and 

City staff member positions serve annual terms and serve until notice of replacement. 

 
Section 3. Selection of Directors. All Director positions to be filled after the 

appointment of the initial Board of Directors will be filled pursuant to this Section. 

 
3.1 Voting Directors: No later than January of each year, the Board Chair will appoint a 

Board member to serve as the Nominating Committee Chair. The Board Chair will also 

appoint one other Board member to serve on the Nominating Committee, along with the 

Executive Director. Both appointments must be approved by a majority vote of the Board of 

Directors. The Nominating Committee will conduct interviews with candidates who are 

willing to accept voting Directorship responsibilities for upcoming vacancies on 

Page 43 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 

 

the Board. No later than March, the Nominating Committee will present a slate of 

candidates to the Board for approval through a majority vote of the Board. 

 
3.2 City Councilor and City staff member positions: These positions will be filled as 

specified in Article IV, Section 2, above. 

 
Section 4. Qualifications of Directors.  Board members will be selected based on 

their willingness and availability to serve and the experience, knowledge, and energy 

they can bring to the Board. There is no residency requirement nor is there a 

requirement that any Director be connected with a company, business, or organization 

located in either McMinnville or the 97128 zip code. 

 
The Board consists of a) two members at large, who may be, but do not need to be, 

tourism industry representatives, b) one City Councilor, c) one City staff person, d) the 

Executive Director, and e) five to seven tourism industry representatives. The tourism 

industry representatives need not be representatives of any specific tourism industries. 

At no time will a majority of the tourism industry representatives represent any one 

tourism industry (e.g. wine, food, or lodging).  No more than one Director representing 

any given company, business, or organization will be allowed to serve at one time. 

 
Section 5. Vacancies. If vacancies reduce the number of voting Directors to less than 

seven, and if more than sixty days remain in the term of the Director or Directors whose 

leaving has/have caused the number of voting Directors to fall below seven, the Chair   

will propose one candidate for each voting Director position which is to be filled and the 

Board will vote on that/those candidate(s). The election of the candidate(s) will be by a 

majority vote of the Board. 

 
In all other cases, VM is not required to fill voting Director positions which are vacated 

mid-term. However, if such a voting Director position becomes vacant mid-term, the Chair 

will, within sixty days of the vacation, make a recommendation to the Board as to whether 

to fill the position. If the recommendation is to fill the position, the Chair will propose a 

candidate to complete the term. The election of the candidate will be by a majority vote of 

the Board. 

 
A voting Director elected to fill a vacancy under this section will serve until the expiration 

of the term of the position to which the Director was elected. 

 
A City Councilor or City staff person may be appointed to fill a vacancy in a City 

Councilor or City staff person position as specified in Article IV, Section 2. The 

Page 44 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 

 

appointee will serve until the expiration of the term of the position to which the City 

Councilor or City staff person was appointed. 

 
Section 6. Removal or Resignation of Directors. If any Director misses more than 

two meetings in a row or more than three meetings during the fiscal year, the Director's 

resignation will be deemed to have been tendered and accepted. The other Directors, 

by majority vote, may make an exception for good cause shown. 

 
Any Director may be removed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors for failure to 

fulfill the duties required of Directors, or intentional acts or omissions which a prudent 

person could reasonably have foreseen would damage the reputation or interests of 

VM. Removal will be based on a finding of the Board that the best interests of VM will 

be served by this action. The City Councilor may be removed at any time by the Mayor 

with approval of a majority of the City Council. The City staff person may be removed at 

any time by the City Manager. 

 
Any Director may resign at any time by providing thirty days written notice to the 

Executive Director or the Chair. 

 
In all cases of removal or resignation under this section, vacancies will be filled or left 

vacant under the specifications of Article IV, Section 5. 

 
Section 7. Meetings. The Board of Directors meets no less than once every quarter, 

at a time and location determined by the Chair. All meetings will be held in accordance 

with Oregon Public Meetings and Records Law. The Chair or Executive Director may 

cancel or reschedule meetings. The Chair or Executive Director may call special 

meetings of the Board of Directors at any time. 

 
Regularly scheduled Board meetings may be held without separate notice if the 

location, date, and time are fixed by resolution or all Directors were originally notified of 

the schedule. Special meetings of the Board and any regular meetings of the Board 

which are not pre-scheduled as specified above must be noticed to each Director no 

less than two days and no more than thirty days in advance of the meeting. 

 
Decisions of a routine nature may be made by the Chair and Executive Director. These 

decisions, if outside the governance policies established by the Board, must be ratified 

by majority vote at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

 
Section 8. Quorum. A quorum consists of a simple majority of the voting Board 

members in good standing immediately before the meeting begins. A quorum must be 

Page 45 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 

 

present at Board of Directors' meetings in order for the Board to take action. A majority vote 

consists of a simple majority of the quorum of voting Board members in attendance at any 

given meeting. 

 
Section 9.  Voting.  With the exception of the Executive Director, the City Councilor, 

and the City staff member, each member of the Board of Directors has one vote. Proxy 

voting is not allowed, either at a meeting of the Board of Directors or in any other way 

connected with the Board reaching a decision. Directors unable to attend a meeting of   

the Board may send a letter, e-mail, or other written communication to the Board stating 

his/her opinion or position on any matter before the Board.  A copy of the 

communication will be distributed to each Board member present, and, if the absent   

Board member so requests, the communication will be read aloud at the meeting during 

the discussion of the issue. Any Board member may attend a meeting via telephone, 

conference call, or video conferencing, subject to the Oregon Public Meetings Law. 

 
Section 10. Conflicts of Interest. When a Board member has an actual or potential 

conflict of interest in a transaction with VM, the material facts of the transaction and the 

Board member's interest will be disclosed to the Board of Directors at each meeting   

prior to any vote taking place. The conflict will be recorded in the minutes of the    

meeting. Conflicts of interest are regulated by ORS Chapter 244. The existence of an 

actual conflict of interest disqualifies a Board member from participating in both the 

discussion and the vote on the issue. A Board member with a potential conflict of 

interest may participate in the discussion and vote on the matter after declaring the 

conflict as discussed above. Each Board member will sign a conflict of interest   

statement annually. 

 
Section 11. Officers, Duties. There are three officers of the Board: Chair, Vice-Chair, 

and Treasurer-Secretary. All officers must be voting members of the Board of Directors. 

 
11.1 Chair: The Chair presides at meetings of the Board of Directors, assures 

that the Board of Directors is advised on all significant matters of business, and provides 

guidance in the development of overall VM long-term objectives. The Chair may also 

perform other duties as prescribed by the Board of Directors. 

 
Although the Chair may vote on any issue before the Board, s/he may remain neutral on 

issues before the Board unless his/her vote is needed to break a tie. 

 
The Chair and the Executive Director serve as the official spokespersons for VM. The 

roles of Executive Director and Chair are complementary, with the Executive Director 

Page 46 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 

 

seeing to the operation of VM and the achievement of the desired results, and with the 

Chair seeing to the health of the Board and the achievement of Board responsibilities. 

 
The Chair and the Executive Director may sign deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or 

other instruments, which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed. A 

minimum of two signatures is necessary for such legal documents, except in cases 

where the signing is expressly delegated to some other agent by the Board of Directors 

or statute. 

 
The Chair, along with the Vice-Chair and the Treasurer-Secretary, conducts an annual 

performance evaluation of the Executive Director and provides a written report of the 

review, along with a recommendation for any action, to the Board of Directors. Insofar 

as possible, reviews will be confidential. 

 
11.2 Vice-Chair: The Vice-Chair serves as the first assistant to the Chair, 

performing the duties of the Chair in the Chair's absence. The Vice-Chair succeeds the 

Chair in the event of a mid-term vacancy in the position of Chair. 

 
11.3 Treasurer-Secretary: The Treasurer-Secretary oversees financial reports, 

which describe the financial condition of VM and serves as liaison between the   

contracted financial management services provider and the Board. The Treasurer 

Secretary succeeds as Vice-Chair in the event the Vice-Chair position becomes vacant 

mid-term and s/he succeeds as Chair in the event that both the Chair and Vice-Chair 

positions become vacant mid-term. 

 
11.4 Secretary: The duties ordinarily performed by a Corporate Secretary are 

performed by the Executive Director and his/her staff. 

 
Section 12.  Election of Officers.  The current voting Directors nominate voting Directors 

for the positions of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Treasurer-Secretary at the first meeting of each 

calendar year. The election of each officer is by a majority vote of the Directors. The 

election of the officers is conducted either at the first meeting of the calendar year or as 

soon as possible thereafter. Officers' terms are one calendar year, but officers remain in 

their offices until a new election has been held. Officers may be re-elected to the same 

position for subsequent years, as long as the officer is a member in good standing of the 

Board of Directors. If an officer position becomes vacant during a term, the rules of 

succession in Section 11 above apply. To fill any vacancy after applying the rules of 

succession, the Board of Directors nominates a member to serve out the term of that 

position. This interim officer must be approved by a majority vote of the Directors. 

Page 47 of 76 



 
 
 
 

Article V. Executive Director 

 
Section 1. Executive Director. The Board employs an Executive Director who is 

charged with the general supervision and management of the office and business affairs 

of VM. The Executive Director reports directly to the Board. The Board sets the   

Executive Director's salary. The Executive Director is charged with proposing to the 

Board and, upon approval by the Board, implementing an annual marketing plan and 

budget. The Executive Director has the authority for supervision of all employees, 

including all personnel actions and employee compensation within the annual budget as 

approved by the Board. The Executive Director serves as the Corporate Secretary, keeps 

all necessary records, and in general manages the affairs of VM to promote the 

objectives for which it was organized. In the absence of the Executive Director, all duties 

will be performed by a member of the staff appointed for that purpose. The Executive 

Director is a non-voting member of the Board of Directors, is a member of all Board 

committees, and carries out other duties as assigned by the Board, its officers, and 

committees. The Executive Director executes (with the Chair) and oversees all contracts, 

mortgages, deeds, bonds, or other instruments in accordance with action plans and 

expenditures budgeted and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
The Executive Director and the Chair of the Board are the official spokespersons for 

VM. The roles of Executive Director and Chair are complementary, with the Executive 

Director seeing to the operation of VM and the achievement of the desired results, and 

with the Chair seeing to the health of the Board and the achievement of Board 

responsibilities. 

 
The Executive Director is accountable to the full Board, not to individual Board members 

or committees. This does not prevent full interaction between the Executive Director and 

Board members and committees. The actions of the Executive Director must be in 

harmony with the wishes of the Board as a whole. A dispute between a Board member    

or a committee and the Executive Director will be arbitrated by the full Board and, where 

necessary, a majority Board vote will determine the outcome. 

 
Article VI. Finances 

 
Section 1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of VM commences on the first day of July and 

ends on the last day of June each year. 

 
Section 2. Special Fund. No organized effort to raise funds for VM will be undertaken 

unless authorized by the Board. 

Page 48 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Section 3. Annual Budget. The Executive Director prepares and submits an annual 

budget for the coming fiscal year to the Board of Directors for review no later than May    

1 each year. The Board of Directors adopts a final budget by majority vote no later than 

June 30 each year. 

 
Section 4.  Disbursements. All disbursements must adhere to the financial policies 

and procedures approved by the Board of Directors by majority vote. No obligations or 

expenses will be incurred and no monies will be appropriated for unbudgeted items 

without prior approval of the Board of Directors by majority vote. Upon approval of the 

annual operating budget, the Executive Director is authorized to make disbursements   

on accounts and expenses provided for in the budget without additional approval of the 

Board of Directors. All disbursements except petty cash will be made by check or 

electronic funds transfer. 

 
Section 5. Annual Review/Audit. The financial books of VM will be audited or 

reviewed annually by an independent certified public accountant. The accountant will 

make a written report of the review/audit to the Board of Directors which will then submit 

a copy of the report to the McMinnville City Council. The audit or review will be 

completed as soon as practical after the close of the fiscal year. 

 
Article VII.  Amendments 

 
Section 1. Amendments. All proposed amendments or changes to these bylaws will be 

made by the Board of Directors and will be approved by a majority vote of the voting 

Directors in good standing who are then in office.  Prior to the adoption of the   

amendment, each Director will be given at least forty eight hours notice of the date, 

time, and place of the meeting at which the proposed amendment is to be considered.  

The notice will state that the purpose or one of the purposes of the meeting is to    

consider a proposed amendment to the bylaws and it will contain a copy of the   

proposed amendment. 

 
Article VIII. Indemnification 

 
Section 1. Indemnification. VM will indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is 

threatened with being made a party, to any threatened or pending action or suit by reason 

of the fact that s/he is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of VM, for expenses 

(including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him/her in connection with 

the defense or settlement of the action or suit, provided s/he acted in good faith and in a 

manner s/he reasonably believed to be in, or at least not opposed to, 

Page 49 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 
 

the best interests of VM. No indemnification will be given to any person who has been 

adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his/her duty to 

VM unless and only to the extent that the court in which the action or suit was brought 

determines that, despite the adjudication of liability, and in view of all circumstance of    

the case, the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for expenses which    

the court deems proper. 

 
Section 2. Insurance. VM will, at all times, carry all appropriate directors and officers 

and liability insurance. 

 

Proposed Article IX. Purpose/Dissolution Clause 

 

Visit McMinnville is a destination marketing organization working exclusively for the 

Economic Development of the City of McMinnville. 

 

Upon the dissolution of the organization, assets shall be distributed for one or more 

exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code, 

or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the 

federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose.  Any such 

assets not disposed of shall be disposed of by a court of competent jurisdiction in the 

county in which the principal office of the organization is located, exclusively for such 

purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which 

are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes. 

 
 
These bylaws are approved this _____ day of ____________, 2016, by the initial 
Board of Directors of Visit McMinnville. 
 
 
 
 
Erin Stephenson, Chair   Cindy Lorenzen, Director 
 
 
 
 
 
Maria Stuart, Vice Chair   Carmen Pierano, Director 
 
 
 
 
 
Cassie Sollars, Treasurer-Secretary   Ty Rollins, Director 
 
 
 
 
 Page 50 of 76 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ellen Brittan, Director   Scott A. Hill, Director (City Counsilor) 
 
 
 
 
 
Courtney Cunningham, Director   Martha Meeker, Director (City staff) 

 
 
 
 
 
Emily Howard, Director 

 
 

 

 

Page 51 of 76 



	

	

	
	

City of Newberg 2017 - 2018 
Transient Lodging Tax – Destination Development and Marketing 

Promotion Grant Program Reports  
	
 
To be completed and returned: Progress Report by September 7, 2018. 
 
To be completed and returned by ______: Final Report 30 days after project, program or event. 
 
Attach receipts, paid invoices for monies spent and a check to the City of Newberg for an 
unspent funds. 
 
Project Title: Newberg Downtown Wineries Strategic Multi-Media Presence 
 
Name of Organization requesting funds: Newberg Downtown Wineries Association 
 
Mailing address: 501A N. Howard St, Newberg, OR 97132 
 
Contact name:  Sheila Nicholas, sheila@anamcaracellars.com 
   Michelle Fritts, michellef@chehalemwines.com 
 
Phone:   Sheila: (503) 550-8686 c Michelle:  (503) 250-3013 c 
 

1. Detail of Income and Expenses as compared to budget submitted (must be as detailed 
as possible) 

 
NOTE: Please attach receipts or a spreadsheet that documents both income and expenses 
 
Budgeted Income 
Sources 

Amount Actual Income 
Sources 

Amount 

Membership Dues 6,600.00 Membership (to date) 5,293.94 
Events 2,000.00 Events HMH, 8.11.18 260.92, after 

expenses 
  Events: Night Market TBD 
  Events: Passport TBD 
    
    
    
Total Budgeted 
Project/Program/Event 
Income 

 Total Actual 
Project/Program/Event 
Income 

 

 

Page 52 of 76 



	

	

 
Budgeted Expenses Amount ACTUAL EXPENSES Amount 
Marketing  Prepared Marketing Awaiting invoice 
  Rose City Marketing* $500 
    
    
    
    
Total Budgeted 
Project/Program/Event 
Expenses 

 Total Actual 
Project/Program/Event 
Expenses 

 

 
 
 
 

2. Do you have unused City funds remaining? If so how much?  
 
Yes. With regard to the $6,6666.66 check that was received and deposited on 8/10/18, 
less than $1,000 has been used for marketing purposes. We have been progressively 
researching and interviewing marketing companies over the busy summer months. After 
serious review, we are deciding on Rose City Marketing. Amanda has a wealth of 
experience in the tourism and analytics to back up our endeavors. We are aggressively 
putting actionable items, specifically driven through marketing endeavors such as stated 
in our notes below. 

 
3. Date project, program or event was (or will be) completed: 

 
Events under NDW | Summer – Winter 2018: 

 
 Club Crawl: 2nd, 3rd & 4th weekends in June 
 Hoover Minthorn House | Picnic in the Garden: August 11, 2018 
 Newberg Night Market: September 29, 2018 (1500 FB likes, 58 attending as of 9.7.18) 
 NDW Case Raffle 2018: begins Labor Day to Nov. 18th 

*Plans for 2019 include: Newberg Night Market - March/April, HMH Garden 
Picnic - June, Allison Harvest - September. 

 
 Ongoing: Marketing endeavors, see notes below, as impact re: grant 
.  
 

4. Results achieved with project, program or event. Did you reach your target audience or 
goal? Discuss your measurement of success. 

 
Ongoing. Our concentrated efforts from all nine (9) downtown wineries are showing a 
unified front for driving customers to the downtown Newberg area. This can be noted 
from our zip code retrievals (as attached). While we aim to increase our SEO, we will 
continue to provide engagement with our visitors, while sharing the opportunities and 
availability of lodging within our community.  

 
 

Page 53 of 76 



	

	

5. Please include data that supports how many tourists and room nights you believe this 
project, program or event helped generate based on collected zip codes of attendees. 

 
Attached you will find data from most of the NDW organizations with summer months of 
zip code data. We feel this is providing a great value of information regarding our visitors 
to the Willamette Valley, specifically to the city of Newberg. 
 
Additional notes regarding marketing efforts: as under Rose City Media 
 
Tourism Promotion:  
 
Advertising:  daily posting to FB page/Instagram, bi-weekly boost and event 
promotions. 
 
Strategic Planning: researching other similar associations and assure we are staying in 
the know and up with current marketing trends. 
 
Operating Tourism promotions agencies: working on getting NDW Assoc. in 
publications that are relevant to the wine connoisseurs (working on Portrait Magazine) 
 
Marketing Special Events: making efforts to purchase tickets easy, understandable, 
minimize confusion. Making calendar up-to-dated from all 9 wineries. 
 
Website Migration – working on current & functional details from all 9 wineries 
Additions for restaurants, lodging links: adding appropriate links & pixels to maximize 
marketing audience. 
 
SEO/Mobile website improvement: Now working with a specialist on the SquareSpace 
platform to identify and secure SEO optimization verbiage, making adjustments more 
adaptable for our needs, especially with requests of tracking data and leads. Aiming for 
better commerce experience. Progressing rapidly and will have a much more robust site 
to share at our next reporting period. 
 
Google Analytics: utilizing Google AdWords and will be aiming to have updated reports 
on a monthly basis. 
 

 

Page 54 of 76 



POS Portland OR 97221
POS Sherwood OR 97140
POS Milwaukie OR 97229
POS OR 97062
POS Cooperburg PA 18036
POS Half	Moon	BayCA 94018
POS Tracy CA 95304
POS Portland OR 97229
POS Denver CO 80210
POS Portland OR 97268
POS Portland OR 97239
POS Sherwood OR 97140
POS West	ChesterOH 45069
POS Portland OR 97210
POS Portland OR 97219
POS Portland OR 97239
POS manchester MO 63021
POS Chandler AZ 85248
POS Portland OR 97221
POS Portland OR 97239
POS Beaverton OR 97006
POS Tualatin OR 97062
POS Albany NY 12208
POS Portland OR 97213
POS Dallas TX 75248
POS BreckenridgeCO
POS Tualatin OR 97062
POS Rocklin CA 95677
POS Dundee OR 97115
POS Hillsboro OR 97123
POS Portland OR 97229
POS Sussex WI 53089
POS Portland OR 97214
POS Portland OR 97202
POS McMinnviilleOR 97129
POS Lake	OswegoOR 97034
POS Oklahoma	CityOK 73120
POS Portland OR 97239
POS Mission	Hills KS 66208
POS Annapolis MD 21401
Club Seattle WA 98133
POS Salem OR 97306
POS Fort	Collins CO 80525

Page 55 of 76 



POS Scio OR 97374
POS Rocklin CA 95765
POS Tigard OR 97224
POS Portland OR 97229
POS New	York NY 10006
POS Bluffton SC 29910
POS Denver CO 80210
POS Hillsboro OR 97123
POS Rocklin CA 95677
POS Albany OR 97321
POS Golden	ValleyMN 55422
POS Orange CA 92869
POS Philadelphia PA 19107
POS Tigard OR
POS Alpharetta GA 30022
POS Tigard OR 97224
POS manchester MO 63021
POS Portland OR 97229
POS Portland OR 97213
POS Marlton NJ 8053
POS Sherwood OR 97140
POS hoboken NJ 7030
POS Dundeee OR 97115
POS Reinholds PA 17569
POS Tigard OR
POS Milwaukie OR 97229
POS Eugene OR 97405
POS Tigard OR
POS Denver CO 80210
POS Beaverton OR 97008
POS Beaverton OR 97006
POS Portland OR 97239
POS Wilsonville OR 97070
POS Beaverton OR 97007
POS Sherwood OR 97140
POS Hillsboro OR 97123
POS Rocklin CA 95677
POS hobe	sound FL 33455
POS Turner OR 97392
POS Dallas TX 75206
POS Denver CO 80210
POS Portland OR 97229
Club Hampton FL 32044

Page 56 of 76 



POS Portland OR 97209
POS Flagstff AZ 86001
POS Durham NC 27704
POS Portland OR 97221
POS Portland OR 97212
POS Oregon	City OR 97045
POS Salem OR 97308
POS Wilsonville OR 97070
POS hobe	sound FL 33455
POS Keizer OR 97303
POS Portland OR 97229
POS Wilsonville OR 97070
POS Aurora OR 97002
POS Chicago IL 60612
POS McMinnville OR 97128
POS Portland OR 97212
POS Mableton GA 30126
POS Wilmington DE 19807
POS Huntington NY 11743
POS hoboken NJ 7030
POS Dundee OR 97115
POS Portland OR 97229
POS Hillsboro OR 97123
POS Oklahoma	CityOK 73120
POS Tampa FL 33556
POS Oklahoma	CityOK 73120
POS Beaverton OR 97008
POS Portland OR 97213
POS Dundeee OR 97115
POS Milwaukie OR 97229
POS Beaverton OR 97006
POS Orlando FL 32824
POS Sherwood OR 97140
POS Orange CA 92869
POS Troutdale OR 97000
POS San	FranciscoCA 94132
POS Portland OR 97233
POS Hampton FL 32044
POS Wilmington DE 19807
POS Aloha OR 97007
POS McMinnviilleOR 97129
POS Dundee OR 97115
POS Portland OR 97231

Page 57 of 76 



POS Half	Moon	BayCA 94018
POS Lake	OswegoOR 97035
POS Golden	ValleyMN 55422
POS Portland OR 97213
POS Cornelius OR 97113
POS Beaverton OR 97006
POS Portland OR 97229
POS Corona	Del	MarCA 92625
POS Bend OR 97701

Page 58 of 76 



Page 59 of 76 



Page 60 of 76 



Page 61 of 76 



Page 62 of 76 



Page 63 of 76 



Page 64 of 76 



Page 65 of 76 



Page 66 of 76 



Page 67 of 76 



Page 68 of 76 



Page 69 of 76 



Page 70 of 76 



Page 71 of 76 



Page 72 of 76 



Page 73 of 76 



Page 74 of 76 



Page 75 of 76 



Page 76 of 76 


	TLT Ad Hoc Committee 9-5-18 minutes
	TLT Minutes 2018-0820
	TLT Minutes 2018-0917
	Memo Marketing Organization 11-7-18
	Attachment 1 - Res3436
	Attachment 2 - Draft RCA and Visit Newberg Agreement
	Draft RCA Reso XXXX Visit Newberg 10-15-18
	A Resolution

	Draft AGREEMENT Visit Newberg 10-31-18

	Attachment 3 - Draft RCA Res _____ Board Appointments Visit Newberg 10-31-18
	Attachment 4 - VM Bylaws-Signed-2015 w Proposed Clause & Sig Lines
	Progress Report NDWA 9-7-18
	Progress Reporting Form TLT Destination-Marketing Grant 9.7.18
	CHEsales-by-customer-from-2018-06-01-to-30 sales-by-customer-686773-from-2
	NDW data

	Final Report TLT Hoover Minthorn house 2018



